
MEETING NOTICE 

LANCASTER COUNTY BUDGET MONITORING COMMITTEE 

TUESDAY, JULY 23, 2013 

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113 

555 SOUTH 10
th

 Street 

1:00 P.M. 

 

AGENDA 

 

  

1. Review and Discuss the Proposed 2013-14 Lancaster County Budget 

 

 

























Page 1

MINUTES
BUDGET MONITORING COMMITTEE

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
TUESDAY, JULY 23, 2013

1:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Dennis Meyer, County Budget and Fiscal Director; Jane Raybould and
Brent Smoyer, County Commissioners; Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative
Officer; Don Thomas, County Engineer; Mike Thurber, Corrections
Director; Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff; Jim Gordon, Nebraska
Bar Association; Ron Krejci, Community Representative; Kyle Fisher,
Lincoln Chamber of Commerce; Ron Ecklund, Ann Post and Ray Stevens,
Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA); Jordan Pascale, Lincoln
Journal Star Newspaper; and Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

ABSENT: Pam Dingman, Community Representative

The meeting was called to order at 1:06 p.m.

1 REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2013-
2014 LANCASTER COUNTY BUDGET

Dennis Meyer, County Budget and Fiscal Director, discussed the budget process and
issues that impacted the budget this year, referencing the following documents (see
agenda packet and Exhibit A):

• Lancaster County Summary of Expenditure Requirements
• Lancaster County, Comparison of Budgeted Expenditures, Fiscal Year

(FY) 2014 Proposed Compared to FY2013 Adopted
• Lancaster County, Tax Levies, Cents per $100 of Valuation
• Lancaster County, 2013-2014 Calculated Levies
• Computation of Treasurer’s Net Fund Balance
• Lancaster County, Employees by Agency, Last 5 Years
• Lancaster County, Change in Valuation, Last 10 Years
• Lancaster County, Comparison of Payroll Costs, FY2014 Compared to

FY2013
• Lancaster County, Comparison of General Fund Revenues

Meyer said expenditures are projected to total $166,281,563 for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014,
a 4% increase, noting there may be an additional $400,000 reduction in Fund 27
(Grants).  He said the total budget of expenditures for the General Fund will increase by
$5,100,000 this year, which is a 5.63% increase.



Page 2

Meyer explained that the Board is striving for a property tax levy of 28.13 cents per
$100 of valuation this year, which is 0.3 cents below last year.  Last year the County
Board moved 1.6 cents of the Railroad Transportation Safety District’s (RTSD’s) levy to
the County side.  This year, the County will use a lesser portion (1.3 cents).  The
difference is approximately $620,000.  He also noted plans to transfer $1,000,000 from
the Keno Fund into the General Fund for property tax relief.  

Meyer said the County is allowed to levy up to 2% in additional funds for delinquent
taxes.  He explained a portion may be moved to the operating side, depending on the
budget situation, and said he plans to move $700,000 this year.  

Meyer said the budget was prepared using a projection of a 3% increase in valuation. 
Final valuations will be released on August 20th. 

Meyer said the County has always levied a property tax for the Mental Health Fund. 
The County Board has decided to “get out of the business” of providing community
behavioral health services and transition those services from the Community Mental
Health Center (CMHC) to new providers, but retain the Crisis Center.  He said he
removed the levy for the Mental Health Fund and will levy for it in the General Fund
instead and will transfer funds to cover expenditures, as needed.  Meyer also explained
that the County pays two types of matching funds to Region V.  One was paid out of
the General Fund and the other out of the Mental Health Fund.  The second has now
been moved to the General Fund which will increase expenditures.

Raybould arrived at the meeting at 1:14 p.m.

Meyer said 72 employees will be eliminated as a result of transition of services and
payout of their retirement and benefits is anticipated to cost $830,000.  He said that
expense will be covered by a transfer from the Lancaster Manor Fund (proceeds from
the sale of the former nursing home facility).

Kyle Fisher, Lincoln Chamber of Commerce, questioned why the self-insurance funds
were increased if the County is losing 72 employees (see Page 3).  Meyer explained
that the self-insurance funds have been underfunded (see the fund balances on Page
6).  He indicated plans to transfer $500,000 to the Workers Compensation Loss Fund
and $300,000 to the Other Self-Insurance Loss Fund from the Lancaster Manor Fund to
increase those balances.

Jim Gordon, Nebraska Bar Association, inquired about the Register of Deeds (ROD)
Technology Fund (see Page 2).  Meyer explained it reflects revenue that is brought in
through the Register of Deeds Office that can only be used for certain technology
functions in that office.



Page 3

Mike Thurber, Corrections Director, discussed the Corrections budget, noting inmates
will be moved into the new Lancaster County Adult Detention Facility (LCADF) within
next 60 days.  He noted Corrections has also taken on costs for the District Energy
Corporation (DEC) geothermal energy plant that will heat, cool and provide backup
power to the new facility ($1,200,000 per year).

Jane Raybould, County Commissioner, said the County will be reducing the number of
out-of-county contracts for housing of inmates and moving those individuals into the
new facility.  The County is currently housing 98 inmates in other facilities.

In response to a question from Fisher, Meyer said Corrections accounts for
approximately $1,600,000 of the $2,446,475 increase in General Fund operating costs
(see Page 2).

Fisher asked whether there are any funds remaining in the Jail Savings Fund.  Meyer
said there is approximately $980,000 remaining.

Fischer expressed concern that Corrections may continue to see increases.  Raybould
said she and Meyer checked with Douglas, Hall, Sarpy Counties to see what percent of
their General Fund operating budgets were used for Corrections.  She said it was 21%
to 22% and said Lancaster County is in that range. 

Ron Krejci, Community Representative, asked how the current jail facility will be used. 
Meyer said the architects presented the County Board with revised options for reuse of
the building once it is vacated by Corrections.  He said the Board is looking at moving
departments that are currently housed in other County-owned buildings into the
building and selling those buildings.

Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff, discussed the Sheriff Department’s budget,
citing the following issues: 1) Wage increases; 2) Health insurance costs; 3) Payouts for
retirements; and 4) Fuel costs.  He also discussed contracts with some the County’s
cities, villages and schools for law enforcement services and budgeting for new radio
equipment.

In response to a question from Krejci, Wagner said issues regarding the charge to the 
County for 911/Emergency Communications have been worked out, adding the charge
to the County is based on the percentage of usage. 

Meyer said there is a 56.51% increase in Juvenile Probation costs as a result of
Legislative Bill (LB) 561, the juvenile justice reform bill.  An additional 43 juvenile
probation officers will be placed in Lancaster County and the County will be required to
fund operating costs (office space, computer equipment, etc.).



Page 4

Meyer also noted the following: 1) Community Corrections will take over some
components of the County’s Diversion Services Program from Diversion Services, Inc.;
and 2) The increase in Emergency Services will be covered by Emergency Management
Program Grant (EMPG) funding; and 3) An Early Assessment Specialist in the Human
Services Department has been made a County, rather than contract, position.

Don Thomas, County Engineer, gave an overview of the Bridge and Special Road Fund
and Highway Fund budgets, noting the following: 1) The County received more
revenues than anticipated in 2013 and will collect significant reimbursements from the
federal project on the Denton Road and federal aid work on three bridge projects; 2)
Gas tax receipts in the Highway Fund were higher than anticipated; 3) Asphalt costs
were lower than anticipated; and 4) The County is anticipated to receive $243,000 for
roads and $80,228 for bridge replacement in 2014 through the State’s federal funds
purchase program (the State will buyout the County’s federal aid).

Fischer asked Thomas whether he believes the County has a local match obligation for
the South Beltway.  Thomas said he does not.

Krejci inquired about County retirement match contributions.  Meyer said the Fraternal
Order of Police (FOP), Lodge 32 (Correctional Officers) bargaining group has agreed to
reduce the County’s pension match from 1.5 to 1 to 1 to 1 for new hires.  The County is
still negotiating contracts with the American Federation of State, County & Municipal
Employees (AFSCME) (Blue Collar, Clerical and Technical Workers) and FOP, Lodge 77
(Juvenile Detention Officers).  The contract with FOP, Lodge 29 (Sheriff Deputies,
Sergeants and Lieutenants) will not expire until August 30, 2014.  Raybould said the
County Board will likely take action to apply the reduced rate to unrepresented
employees hired after September 1, 2013. 

Meyer also discussed General Fund revenues, noting reductions in interest and state
aid, jail reimbursement, and the increase in inheritance tax collections.  He explained
that if the County were to lose inheritance tax revenue, it would have to increase the
property tax levy by 4 cents, per $100 of valuation.

In response to a question from Krejci, Meyer said the County started with a deficit of
$9,400,000, noting the $1,000,000 transfer from the Keno Fund, the $900,000 in the
fund balance and a projected 3% increase in valuation helped out. 

2 ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:28 p.m.

Submitted by Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office.






